
Board of Public Works Agenda 
July 30, 2019 

AGENDA      
BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS MEETING 
Tuesday, July 30, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 
Jackson Village Hall 
N168 W20733 Main Street  
Jackson, WI 53037 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call. 

 
2. Approval of the Board of Public Works Minutes of June 27, 2019. 

 
3. Review of Proposal for Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee 

Study – City Water and Trilogy Consulting, LLC. 
 

4. Review of bids for 2019 Improvements Sherman Rd Drainage and Jackson 
Park Alley Reconstruction Project. 
 

5. Review of bids for 2019 Chateau Dr & Hickory Lane Reconstruction 
Project. 
 

6. Resolution #19–20 Preliminary Assessment for Chateau Dr and Hickory 
Lane Reconstruction Project. 
 

7. Limited Water Service Study. 
 

8. Review of US Cellular Antenna Reconfiguration – White Water Tower. 
 

9. Discussion of Village Informational Signs. 
 

10. Director of Public Works Report. 
 

11. Citizens/Village Staff to address the Board. 
 

12. Adjourn. 
 
Persons with disabilities requiring special accommodations for attendance at the meeting should contact 
the Village Hall at least one (1) business day prior to the meeting. 

 
It is possible that members of the Village Board may attend the above meeting.  No action will be 
taken by any governmental body at this meeting other than the governmental body specifically 
referred to in this meeting notice.  This notice is given so that members of the Village Board may 
attend the meeting without violating the open meeting law. 



 

June 25, 2019 Board of Public Works Minutes 
Page 1 of 3 

 

DRAFT Minutes 
Board of Public Works Meeting 

Tuesday, June 25, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 
Jackson Village Hall 

N168 W20733 Main Street 
  

1. Call to Order and Roll Call. 

Trustee Malcolm called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 Members present:  Brian Heckendorf, Tr. Lippold, Sarah Malchow, Tr. Malcolm, and 

Gloria Teifke 

 Members excused:  Chair Olson and Dan Leonard 
 Staff present:  Brian Kober, John Walther, and Jilline Dobratz 
 

2. Approval of the Board of Public Works Minutes of May 28, 2019. 
Motion by Tr. Lippold, second by Sarah Malchow to approve the Board of Public Works 

minutes of May 28, 2019.          
 Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

3. Resolution #19-16 Adopting 2018 CMAR Jackson Sewer Utility. 
Brian Kober reviewed the annual report. The plant received a grade point average of 
3.92 out of 4 which is an A rating. 

Motion by Brian Heckendorf, second by Tr. Lippold recommend Village Board approve 
Resolution #19-16 Adopting the 2018 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report for the 
Jackson Sewer Utility.  

Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 
4. Review of REU Calculation for St. Joseph Hospital Ambulatory Surgery Center 

Addition. 
Brian Kober explained St. Joseph’s Community Hospital is building onto the hospital 
with an Ambulatory Surgery Center. The Jackson Sewer and Water Utilities have 

reviewed proposed increased flows for the hospital addition. They estimated an 
increase of five Residential Equivalent Units (REUs) which equals to 300 gallons per 

day. The current water usage average is at about 100 REUs, and the Hospital has 
purchased a total of 108 REUs during a previous addition.  The current water usage is 
under the purchased REU total so no extra REUs are needed to be purchased at this 

time.  The Jackson Utilities will continue to monitor the water usage if future purchases 
are necessary.  The hospital is not asking for an increase of water pressure for the 
addition.   

Motion by Tr. Malcolm, second by Sarah Malchow recommend Village Board accept the 
review of REU Calculation for St. Joseph Hospital Ambulatory Surgery Center Addition.  
Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 

  
5. Review of US Cellular Antenna Reconfiguration – White Water Tower. 

Brian Kober commented the intent from US Cellular is to move six radio units from their 

shelter to the top of the tower near their antennas. They would also like to remove six 



 

June 25, 2019 Board of Public Works Minutes 
Page 2 of 3 

 

lines of coax and replace them with one hybrid line and a small Raycap Junction box. 
US Cellular will be proposing a new lease agreement. 

Motion by Tr. Lippold, second by Brian Heckendorf to refer review of US Cellular 
Antenna Reconfiguration – White Water Tower to the next Board meeting.  
Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 

 
6. Discussion on Jackson Park Alley Reconstruction Project 

Brian Kober meet with the property owners last Wednesday. The project will be put out 

for bid on July 11, 2019 and July 18, 2019 for discussion at next month’s meeting.  
 

7. Review of Quotes on Creating a Yard Waste and Drop-Off Site.  
Brian Kober received three quotes from fencing companies. The low bid is Century 
Fence Company who subs out the whole project. Fence Erectors, Inc. is a single 

company that installs and troubleshoots their project. Future maintenance and card 
purchase will be less expensive with Fence Erectors, Inc. Brian Heckendorf clarified the 
yard waste and drop-off site area. Brian Kober explained the current yard waste pick up 

schedule. The drop-off site will be for residents who want to bring bags and brush to 
the yard themselves. This will save the Streets Department from picking up bags. 
Discussion on the possibility of charging for yard cards. These are capital expenses. 

Motion by Tr. Lippold, second by  Gloria Teifke to recommend to Budget & Finance and 
Village Board to accept the quote from Fence Erectors, Inc. for the fence/gate at the 
Yard Waste Drop-off Site in an amount not to exceed $24,484.00. 

Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
Motion by Brian Heckendorf, second by Tr. Lippold to recommend to Budget & Finance 
and Village Board to accept the quote from Johnson & Sons Paving Co. in an amount 

not to exceed $56,580.00. 
Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 

 

8. Discussion of Village Informational Signs. 
Brian Kober reviewed the two sign quotes. Next the Village will need to apply for a 

permit from the WisDOT to install the signs in the State Highway 60 right of way. The 
WisDOT might not allow eight items on a sign. 
Motion by Tr. Lippold, second by Tr. Malcolm to refer discussion of Village Informational 

signs to the next meeting for staff to pursue the signs with the WisDOT. 
Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

9. Director of Public Works Report. 
Brian Kober gave the report. Laurel Springs started on June 24 th. Maplewood Farms 
development is proceeding with a pre-construction meeting on June 26th. The Hickory 

Park Playground project has had great reviews and is very popular. Little Tikes is going 
to use the playground in their national catalog. The Splash Play is very busy. 
Motion by Brian Heckendorf, second by Tr. Lippold to place the Director of Public Works 

report on file. 
 Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.   
 

10. Citizens/Village Staff to Address the Board. 
None 



 

June 25, 2019 Board of Public Works Minutes 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
11. Adjourn. 

 Motion by Tr. Lippold, second by Brian Heckendorf to adjourn. 
 Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays. Meeting was adjourned 7:37 p.m.     
 

 Respectfully submitted,  
 
 

 
 Jilline Dobratz, CMC/WCMC 

Village Clerk 



   

Village of Jackson 

Proposal for Public Facilities Needs 

Assessment and Impact Fee Study 

June 20, 2019 

Submitted by Trilogy Consulting, LLC  



 2 

Table of Contents 

Firm Overview 3 

Technical Approach 4 

Scope of Services 5 

Project Experience 11 

Principal Resumes 15 

Project Budget 20 

Project Timeline 21 



 3 

Firm Overview 

Trilogy Consulting, LLC offers local governments and utilities an 
objective, independent perspective on planning, administrative and 
financial issues. Our core services include impact fees; sewer, storm 
water and water user charge rate studies and financial plans; utility 
customer demand studies; funding for capital improvement plans; 
economic feasibility studies; ordinance preparation; intergovernmental 
cooperation studies and agreements; and specialized economic and 
policy analysis.  
 
Trilogy was formed in November 2011 and is jointly owned by our principals, Erik Granum and Christine 
DeMaster (formerly Cramer).  Erik and Christine have 33 years of experience working with dozens of 
municipalities on a wide variety of issues related to managing, operating, regulating and funding local 
government infrastructure and services. We do not have any additional staff at this time, so all of our 
consulting services are provided by our principals.  As owners of the company, we are passionate about 
providing excellent customer service and the highest quality work.  
 
Prior to forming Trilogy Consulting, Christine was a consultant with Ruekert/Mielke from 1997 to 2011; 
Erik was a consultant with Ruekert/Mielke from 2007 through 2011. During that time and since forming 
Trilogy, we also prepared periodic statewide surveys of the use of impact fees by Wisconsin municipalities, 
gave seminars on the use of impact fees, and successfully implemented dozens of impact fees and impact 
fee updates for municipalities throughout the state. We are highly qualified and experienced to assist 
Wisconsin municipalities with any impact fee analysis or question. 
 
Trilogy Consulting, as well as each of our principals, is a registered municipal advisor with the Securities 
Exchange Commission and Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. As registered municipal advisors, we 
provide independent advice to our client communities regarding potential funding and financial plans. 
 
 

Contact Info 
169 E. Wisconsin Ave., Suite R 
Oconomowoc, WI 53066 
Phone: 920-723-2169 
Fax: 262-436-2102 
Email: egranum@trilogy-llc.com 



 4 

Technical Approach 

In 1999, the Village of Jackson had its first comprehensive public facilities needs assessment and impact 

fee study prepared. The Village was anticipating the need for substantial improvements to its water, 

sewer, and parks facilities to accommodate increasing demands for services from new development. In 

2011, the Village prepared a new Water System Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study. The study 

included an additional needs assessment and impact fee study for a new police/fire facility, as well as 

changing the sewer fee from an impact fee to a service (or connection) fee. New fees were adopted on the 

basis of this study, including an indexing of fees to the Consumer Price Index for the police/fire facility fee. 

Given the length of time since the impact fee studies were prepared, the growth that has occurred in the 

Village, and the preparation of new facility plans, it is important to re-evaluate these fees to ensure that 

they reflect anticipated facilities needs and costs and development patterns in the Village.  For this public 

facilities needs assessment and impact fee study update, our technical approach will include the following: 

• Consistent application of explicit service level standards to current and future development to 

determine current deficiencies—Wisconsin Statutes 66.0617 requires the identification of explicit 

service level standards. In order to ensure that costs needed to bring existing facilities up to the 

desired standards are not included in the impact fees, it is important to apply the same standards to 

existing development and determine the amount of public facilities capacity that would be needed to 

provide the same service level to existing development.  

• Identification of the maximum amount eligible for recover through impact fees—our study will identify 

the maximum that could be charged under existing impact fee statutes. The Village may choose to 

collect a lower amount for any or all of the fees as a matter of policy. 

• Utilization of any recently completed studies for police/fire and parks facilities and the ongoing water 

supply planning for service level standards and future facilities and costs—these plans provide 

substantial detail regarding the needed facilities and costs that can be incorporated into the impact 

fee study. 

• Recommendations for application of prior years’ impact fee revenues and interest earnings—the 

properties that have paid impact fees over the past years are now ‘existing’ development. There are 

several options for applying fees paid in by previous developments, which we will discuss with Village 

staff to determine the approach that is a best fit for the Village. 

• Identification of the percentage of project costs for each recommended project that is eligible to be 

paid for with impact fees—we will identify the percentage of each project that will be eligible for 

recovery through impact fees based on the desired fee level and method for applying previously paid 

fees. This is important as a guide for the Village in applying impact fee revenues to cash finance 

projects or pay debt service. 



 5 

Scope of Services 

Task 1:  Inventory and Identification of Existing Deficiencies 

1. Kickoff meeting 
a. At commencement of the project, we will conduct a kickoff meeting with Village staff to 

discuss study objectives, project schedule, points of contact, information necessary and availa-
ble to complete the study, desired changes to the impact fees, if any, and other pertinent 
information. 

b. As part of this kickoff meeting, an important point of discussion will be the planning horizon 
for the updated impact fees.  The previous impact study did not identify a specific timeline for 
project construction or development. The ordinance states that fees will be collected until the 
time at which projects are paid. Our approach will be to reconcile fees collected since 1999 to 
ensure fees have been applied appropriately and determine how much more will be needed. 
As a starting point, an estimated planning horizon for the update of the fees would be approx-
imately 2040, but this could be refined. 

  
2. Information gathering and review 

a. Prior to the kickoff meeting, we will provide Village staff with a preliminary list of requested 
information, and may change the information requested based on discussions at the kickoff 
meeting regarding data availability. 

b. Following initial review of the information, we will confer with Village staff to clarify any 
information as needed, and to discuss the following: 
i. Any known factors that may affect the future pace of development for the Village; 
ii. Any updated plans for parks facilities; 
iii. The current status of fire and police staffing and facilities and plans for construction of a 

new combined facility, and the potential need for implementing separate fees for police 
vs. fire facilities; 

iv. Future water system improvements and the potential for including a portion of the project 
costs in the water impact fee. 

v. Any plans for expanding the WWTP or other projects that could be included in the sewer 
service fee. 

 
3. Population and Development Forecasts 

a. The following types of population and development forecasts will be required to update the 
three impact fees: 
i. Population 
ii. Households 
iii. Increase in property value from residential development 
iv. Acres and square footage of nonresidential development 
v. Increase in property value from nonresidential development 
vi. New Residential Equivalent Units (REUs) from new water and sewer customers 

b. A trend analyses of historic growth in population and households, nonresidential develop-
ment, residential and nonresidential property values, number of new water utility customers 



 6 

Scope of Services 

by meter size and water usage per customer by customer class, and residential and nonresi-
dential impact fee revenues from adoption of each fee through 2018 will be prepared, based 
on available data. 

c. Development forecasts will be prepared for the selected planning horizon, including all of the 
elements identified above. 
i. The ongoing water system master planning will be utilized for water and sewer demand, 

based on specific areas of planned development throughout the Village. This plan and the 
Village Comprehensive Plan will be used as a primary source of information for the devel-
opment projections. However, these projections may be adjusted as necessary based on 
the actual pace of development experienced in the past in order to develop more con-
servative projections for purposes of developing impact fees.  

ii. Projections of residential and nonresidential property value and REUs will be developed 
using the base projections of population, housing, nonresidential development and water 
demand, and factors developed from the trend analysis. 

4. Parks 
i. Prepare an updated inventory of park land and facilities. 
ii. Calculate an updated service level standard based on current park facilities and plans laid 

out in the Village Parks and Open Space Plan. 
iii. Identify park facilities that are currently deficient in capacity, as measured by the level of 

service provided, or in physical condition as identified by Village staff. 
5. Police / Fire 

i. Prepare an inventory of information regarding current actual, current recommended, and 
projected staffing levels and number of vehicles, and a description of existing deficiencies 
in facility space, based on discussions with Village staff. 

ii. Prepare an inventory of planned facility space. 
iii. Calculate an updated service level standard for square feet per employee based on the 

design standard. 
iv. Apply the service level standard to the current recommended staffing level to calculate the 

total square feet of deficiency in current facilities (space needed to provide the desired 
service level vs. actual facility space currently provided). 

6. Water Facilities 
i. Since the water system master planning will include a detailed inventory of existing water 

supply facilities and analysis of existing deficiencies, this impact fee study update will 
summarize this information with reference to the water study for more detailed infor-
mation. 

7. Sewer Facilities 
i. Update information regarding capacity of the current WWTP, the definition of an REU and 

any additional plans for future service, in conjunction with the update of the water facili-
ties information. 

 
 

 



 7 

Scope of Services 

Task 2:  Needs Assessment and Identification of Costs Attributable to Future Development 

1. Parks 
i. Update the capital costs for the proposed future park facilities with cost estimates sup-

plied by the Village or from comparable park projects that have been completed. 
ii. Determine the percentage of facilities attributable to serving existing development versus 

the percentage of facilities attributable to serving future development. This analysis may 
be conducted separately for each park type. 
a. For those park facilities for which there is no existing deficiency, the entire capacity of 

the new or expanded park may be considered attributable to serving future develop-
ment. 

b. For those park facilities where there is an existing deficiency, the proportionate share of 
the expanded facilities attributable to serving new development will be determined 
based on future increase in residential development. 

iii. Determine the proportionate share of costs attributable to the need to serve new develop-
ment. 
a. Apply the percentages of facilities attributable to serving future development to the 

estimated costs for new facilities.  
b. Depending on the park type, the share of the cost attributable to new development 

may also be reduced by the estimated cost to replace existing facilities. 
2. Police / Fire 

i. Under Task 1 above, the total square feet of existing deficiency in police/fire facilities will 
be determined. The share of the recommended new facilities space attributable to the 
need to serve future development will be calculated by subtracting the amount of space 
that will be replacing existing facilities and the amount of space required to remedy ex-
isting deficiencies in facility space. The proportionate share needed to serve future devel-
opment will be net space available to serve future development as a percentage of the 
total recommended facilities. 

ii. Cost estimates for the recommended new facilities will be compiled from any existing 
plans and discussions with Village staff regarding any known additional or updated costs. 

iii. The proportionate share of the cost attributable to the need to serve new development 
will be determined by applying the percentage share of facility space to the estimated cost 
of the new facilities. 

3. Water Utility and Sewer Utility 
i. The ongoing water system master planning will guide the appropriate facilities to include 

in the calculation of the impact fee, and if there are any existing deficiencies that will need 
to be considered. 

ii. We will discuss these projects with Village staff to determine how much of the cost of 
these projects, if any, will not be borne by developer contributions or special assessments, 
and could therefore be included in the updated water impact fee. 

iii. Costs for the recommended facilities will be taken from the master plan. 
iv. The proportionate share of the cost of recommended facilities that is attributable to the 



 8 

Scope of Services 

need to serve future development will include the percentage of the recommended new 
facilities, if any, identified as attributable to serving future development, multiplied by the 
estimated cost for those facilities. The water impact fee may include a share of the cost of 
water main extensions to serve new development that will not be covered by developer 
contributions or special assessments if desired by the Village. 

 
Task 3:  Develop Recommended Impact Fees 

1. The total amount of the cost for each of the facilities that is recommended to be recovered 
through impact fees from future development will be determined based on three factors:  1) the 
proportionate share of the cost identified as attributable to the need to serve future develop-
ment as identified under Task 2; 2) the amount of that maximum eligible cost that the Village 
desires to recover through impact fees; and 3) the amount of impact fee revenues and interest 
earnings accrued by the Village since the fees were first imposed. 

i. For all four of the facilities to be addressed in this update, the Village has been collecting 
impact fees for 10 or more years. Therefore, an important consideration for this update is 
how to treat the fee revenues and accrued interest earnings. 

ii. In light of the above factors, we will identify, explore, and discuss with Village staff various 
alternatives for determining the amount of the eligible costs to recover, as well as the 
treatment of past impact fee revenues. 

2. The total amount to be recovered from impact fees imposed on future development will be 
allocated to new development in the following manner for each facility type: 

i. Parks—Consistent with the 2011 study, costs will be allocated between future single 
family residential and multi-family residential development based on the estimated 
growth from and household size of each type of development. 

ii. Police / Fire—Consistent with the 2011 study, costs will be allocated between future single 
family residential, multi-family residential, and non-residential development. The basis of 
the allocation may be altered based on discussions with Village staff, but will likely include 
percentages derived from the percentage of equalized value from each category of devel-
opment. 

iii. Water Utility and Sewer Utility—Currently, the water impact fee was calculated based on 
Residential Equivalent Units (REUs), which is a measure of water use equivalent to the 
average daily use of a typical single family household, defined as 3 persons per household 
or 300 gallons per day per REU. For this impact fee update, the definition of a REU will be 
updated to more accurately reflect current water and sewer use. 

3. A recommended schedule of fees for residential, commercial and industrial development will be 
prepared as follows: 

i. Parks 
a. Residential fees—fees per dwelling unit for single family and multi-family residential 

units will be calculated based on costs allocated to each category of development 
divided by anticipated units of development. 

ii. Police / Fire 



 9 

Scope of Services 

a. Residential fees—fees per dwelling unit for single family and multi-family residential 
units will be calculated based on costs allocated to each category of development 
divided by anticipated units of development. 

b. Nonresidential fees—fees per square foot of building space will be calculated based on 
costs allocated to non-residential development (by category if desired), divided by the 
forecast square footage of future development by category. 

iii. Water Utility and Sewer Utility 
a. Discuss the current fee structure and the underlying assumptions with Village staff, and 

agree upon a methodology for calculating the recommended fees. This will involve 
performing an updated analysis of water usage per REU.  

b. Review the assumptions for water usage used to set the current fee structure. 
4. The impacts on housing affordability in the Village of Jackson of imposing the recommended fees 

will be evaluated as follows: 
i. The recommended fees will be combined to determine the total cumulative fees per single 

family home. 
ii. The impacts on housing affordability will be evaluated based on the following types of 

criteria: 
a. Median household income in the Village of Jackson and the percentage of households 

that fall within various income categories. 
b. The maximum affordable monthly housing costs based on various percentages (100%, 

80%, 60%, 40%) of median household income. 
c. Percentage increase in household income that would be required to afford housing with 

the total proposed impact fees, assuming the fees are passed along to home buyers. 
d. Percentage of existing housing in the Village that falls into various cost categories. 
 

Task 4:  Report Preparation 

1. Prepare a draft report summarizing the fee calculations and supporting documentation needed 
to meet the requirements of Wisconsin Statutes. 

2. Submit an electronic draft copy of the report for Village staff review and comment. 
2. Attend one meeting with Village staff to review the draft report 
3. Make any agreed upon edits to the report as necessary. 
4. Prepare a final written report and submit an electronic PDF version to the Village. 

Task 5:  Implementation Assistance 

1. Prepare presentation materials for a meeting with the Board of Public Works. 
2. Attend one meeting of the Board of Public Works to answer questions related to the proposed 

fees. Additional meetings will be considered additional work. 
3. Review the Village prepared draft amendment to Chapter 2 of the Municipal Code to implement 

the recommended fees. 
4. Attend the required public hearing of the Village Board to answer questions. 



 10 

Scope of Services 

Meetings and Presentations 

1. Two in-person meetings with Village staff: one kickoff meeting and one additional in person 
meetings. 

2. Teleconferences as necessary throughout the study. 
3. One meeting with the Village Board to answer questions related to the study and the recom-

mended fees. Additional meetings will be considered additional work. 
4. Attendance at the Public Hearing to answer questions related to the recommended fees (it is 

anticipated that this would be concurrent with the above Village Board meeting). 
5. Electronic copy of a draft report for review and comment from City staff. 
6. A final written report and all supporting documentation and analysis, in electronic form. 



 11 

Experience 

City of Oconomowoc—2019 

In 2018 and 2019, Trilogy prepared a public facilities needs assessment and impact fee study for Water, 

Streets, and Law Enforcement facilities to update projects and estimated costs in the existing ordinance. 

The City adopted the needs assessment and ordinance that updated these fees in April, 2019. The needs 

assessment and impact fee study update eliminated the impact fee for water facilities and revised the costs 

and projects included in the fees for streets and a new law enforcement building. Trilogy’s services for this 

project were to prepare an amendment to the public facilities needs assessments in compliance with Wis-

consin Statutes 66.0617 and presentations to the Finance Committee and City Council. 

Reference:   
Sarah Kitsembel, Administrator 
174 East Wisconsin Avenue 
Oconomowoc, WI 53066 
(262) 569-2183 
skitsembel@oconomowoc-wi.gov 

 

Village of Menomonee Falls—2017 

In 2017, Trilogy prepared an amendment to the public facilities needs assessment and impact fee study for 

Sanitary Sewer, Parks, and Fire facilities to include additional projects and estimated costs in the needs 

assessment. The Village adopted the amendment to the needs assessment in October, 2017. The amended 

needs assessment and impact fee study will allow the Village to apply impact fee revenues to additional 

projects that were not anticipated when the impact fee study was previously updated in 2014. Trilogy’s 

services for this project were to prepare an amendment to the public facilities needs assessments in compli-

ance with Wisconsin Statutes 66.0617. 

Reference:   
Tom Hoffman, Director of Engineering 
W156 N8480 Pilgrim Rd 
Menomonee Falls, WI 53051 
(262) 532-4400 
THoffman@menomonee-falls.org 
 

Village of Sussex—2015 

Library Impact Fee—In 2015, the Village retained Trilogy Consulting to prepare a public facilities needs 

assessment and impact fee study for a significant expansion and remodeling of its Library. Because the 



 12 

Experience 

project included both remodeling and expansion of the existing library as part of construction of a larger 

combined Village Hall and Library facility, the study required a detailed analysis to determine the propor-

tionate share of costs attributable to future development. Trilogy’s services included preparation of a public 

facilities needs assessment in compliance with Wisconsin Statutes 66.0617, preparation of a draft ordinance 

to implement the fee, and attendance at the Village Board meeting and public hearing to present the pro-

posed fees and answer questions. In April, 2015, the Village Board approved a library impact fee of $800 per 

single family residence, with an annual increase of 8 percent per year until the fees reach the recommended 

amount of $1,966 per single family household. 

Park Impact Fee—In 2015, the Village also retained Trilogy to prepare an update to its public facilities needs 

assessment for park facilities based on its updated Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan. Due to the 

increase in facilities costs for parks, the total amount of impact fee eligible costs would have resulted in a 

fee that was significantly higher than the fees in place in 2015. In November 2015, the Village Board adopt-

ed a schedule of annual increases of 4 percent per year until the fees reach the recommended amount of 

$3,706 per single family household.  

Trilogy’s services for both of these impact fees included preparation of a public facilities needs assessment 

in compliance with Wisconsin Statutes 66.0617, preparation of a draft ordinance to implement the fee, and 

attendance at the Village Board meeting and public hearing to present the proposed fees and answer ques-

tions.  

Reference: 
Jeremy Smith, Village Administrator 
N64 W23760 Main Street 
Sussex, WI  53089 
(262) 246-5200 
JSmith@villagesussex.org 
 

City of River Falls—2014 

In 2014, Trilogy Consulting prepared an update to the City’s Water Facilities Public Facilities Needs Assess-

ment and Impact Fee Study. The water impact fee was initially implemented in 2002, and was updated in 

2004, 2006, and 2009. Based on Trilogy’s recommendations, the City adopted a new schedule of water 

impact fees per meter size in October 2014. The fee per residential equivalent connection (REC) was in-

creased from $1,721 to $2,226. Trilogy’s services for this project included preparation of a public facilities 

needs assessment and impact fee study in compliance with Wisconsin Statutes 66.0617, assistance drafting 

substantial revisions to the City’s impact fee ordinance, attendance at meetings of the Utility Advisory Board 

and the City Council to present the proposed fee, and attendance at the required public hearing. 



 13 

Experience 

Reference: 
Julie Bergstrom, Assistant City Administrator/Finance Director 
222 Lewis Street 
River Falls, WI  54022 
(715) 426-3416 
JBergstrom@RFCITY.org 
 

Village of Menomonee Falls—2014 

In 2014, Trilogy Consulting prepared an update public facilities needs assessment and impact fee study for 

the Village of Menomonee Falls. The study recommended a decrease in the Parks Facilities Impact Fee, an 

increase in the Water Facilities Impact Fee, a decrease in the Sanitary Sewer Facilities Impact Fee, and a 

decrease in the Fire Facilities Impact Fee. In January, 2015, the Village Board adopted the recommended 

impact fees. Trilogy’s services for this project included preparing the public facilities needs assessment and 

impact fee study in compliance with Wisconsin Statutes 66.0617, assisting with an amendment to the 

Village’s impact fee ordinance, and attending the Village Board meeting and public hearing to present the 

study and answer questions. 

Reference: 
Tom Hoffman, Director of Engineering 
W156 N8480 Pilgrim Rd 
Menomonee Falls, WI 53051 
(262) 532-4400 
THoffman@menomonee-falls.org 
 

Village of Mukwonago—2013 

In 2013, the Village adopted increased Police Impact Fees, Fire Impact Fees, Library Impact Fees, and 

Water Impact Fees, and reduced Sanitary Sewer Impact Fees, based on recommendations from Trilogy 

Consulting. The Village’s fees were initially imposed in 2002 and 2003, and an important part of this update 

was determining the implications for public facilities needs of significant changes in population and develop-

ment projections. The 2002/2003 studies were based on projections of three-fold growth of the Village by 

2020 through annexations. The updated projections assumed growth of about 40 percent between 2000 

and 2030. 

Trilogy’s services for adoption of the new fees included updating development projections and costs for 

future facilities; preparing the report required under Wisconsin Statutes 66.0617; updating the impact fee 

ordinance; presenting the recommendations to the Village Board and providing support for the public 



 14 

Experience 

hearing. Trilogy also created an impact fee tracking worksheet for each fee to document expenditures for 

projects completed since the fees were adopted. Using this worksheet, the Village was able to verify that it 

was in compliance with time limits for expending impact fee revenues on the capital costs for which the fees 

were imposed; and that in fact some of the funds in the impact fee accounts could have been applied to 

past project costs or debt service.  

Reference: 
Diana Doherty, Finance Director 
440 River Crest Court 
P.O. Box 206 
Mukwonago, WI  53149 
(262) 363-6420 ext. 2101 
ddoherty@villageofmukwonago.com 
 

 



 15 

Christine A. DeMaster 
Principal / Senior Consultant 

Christine has been a consultant to local governments and utilities 
since 1997, providing analysis and advice on a wide variety of 
planning, economic and fiscal issues. Prior to forming Trilogy, 
Christine was consultant with Ruekert/Mielke from 1997 to 2011. 
While her work experience varies widely the common theme is a 
focus on helping local governments and utilities develop fair and 
equitable long-term plans and policies. Her strengths include not 
only sound, detailed and accurate analysis, but also the ability to 
explain her recommendations in terms that are easy to understand.  
 
Christine is a member of the national and Wisconsin chapter of the 
American Water Works Association, and serves on the AWWA 
Rates and Charges Committee and a sub-committee charged with 
developing recommendations for utility reserve policies. Christine is 
the Chair of the WIAWWA Audit and Finance Committee. She is a 
registered Municipal Advisor with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and 
has passed the Series 50 Municipal Advisor Representative Qualifi-
cation Exam. 

169 E. Wisconsin Ave. Suite R 
Oconomowoc, WI 53066 
Phone: 262-470-2277 
Fax: 262-436-2102 

Email: ccramer@trilogy-llc.com 

• Public  Facilities Needs 
Assessments and Impact Fee 
Studies 

• Water and Sewer Rate Studies 

• Cost-of-Service Rate Studies 

• Specialized Rate Design, including 
Conservation Water Rates and 
High-Strength Sewer Rates 

• Capital Infrastructure Cost 
Allocations 

• Storm Water Utility Rate Studies 
and Development 

• Utility Creation and Acquisition 
Feasibility Studies 

• Redevelopment, Site and General 
Planning Services 

• Long-Term Capital Infrastructure 
Planning and Financial Analysis 

• Tax Incremental Financing 
Planning and Analysis 

• Expert Witness Testimony and 
Litigation Support 

• Specialized Economic and 
Statistical Analysis 

• Public Policy Research and 
Analysis 

• Ordinance Drafting, Review and 
Updating 

• Fiscal Impact Analysis 

• Analysis of New Funding Methods 

• Grant Funding Research and 
Preparation of Applications 

• Landfill Siting Analysis & 
Negotiations 

Experience & Expertise 

Education: 

• Master’s of Urban Planning, 

University of Wisconsin—

Milwaukee, 1997 

• Bachelor of Science, Physics, 

Carroll College, 1994 

 

Professional Affiliations: 

• American Planning Association, 

Wisconsin Chapter 

• American Water Works 

Association, Wisconsin Chapter 

 

Professional Qualifications: 

• Series 50 Municipal Advisor 

Representative Exam 



 16 

With Trilogy Consulting, Christine has prepared, implemented, and updated the following public facilities 

needs assessments and impact fees: 

• Police Impact Fee, Oconomowoc, WI, 2019 

• Transportation Impact Fee, Oconomowoc, WI, 2019 

• Impact Fee Update for Law Enforcement, Library, Fire Station, Sewer and Water Impact Fee, Mukwonago, WI, 

2018 

• Sewer Impact Fee, Menomonee Falls, WI, 2017 

• Park Impact Fee, Menomonee Falls, WI, 2017 

• Fire Impact Fee, Menomonee Falls, WI, 2017 

• Water Impact Fee, Menomonee Falls, WI, 2017 

• Park Impact Fee, Sussex, WI, 2015 

• Library Impact Fee, Sussex, WI, 2015 

• Water Impact Fee, River Falls, WI, 2014 

• Sewer Impact Fee, Menomonee Falls, WI, 2014 

• Park Impact Fee, Menomonee Falls, WI, 2014 

• Fire Impact Fee, Menomonee Falls, WI, 2014 

• Water Impact Fee, Menomonee Falls, WI, 2014 

• Impact Fee Update for Law Enforcement, Library, Fire Station, Sewer and Water Impact Fees, Mukwonago, WI, 

2013 

 

While employed by Ruekert/Mielke, between 1997 and 2011, Christine prepared, implemented, and 

updated public facilities needs assessments and impact fees for the following municipalities: 

• City of Cedarburg 

• Village of Dousman 

• Village of Eagle 

• City of Fitchburg 

• City of Franklin 

• Village of Grafton 

• Village of Hartland 

• City of Kenosha 

• Village of Kewaskum 

• Village of Menomonee Falls 

• City of Middleton 

• Village of Mukwonago 

• City of Muskego 

• City of Oconomowoc 

• City of Racine 

Christine A. DeMaster 

Example Projects 



 17 

Christine A. DeMaster 

Presentations and Papers 

“Funding Annual Water Infrastructure Replacement Programs” - Wisconsin Water Association Annual Conference, 

September 2017 

“Reducing the Cost of Capital” - Water Finance Conference, Milwaukee, WI, August 2017 

“Straight Talk About Water Finance” - Wisconsin Water Association Annual Conference, September 2013 

“Balancing Declining Revenues and Increasing Costs” - Wisconsin Water Association Management Seminar, August 

2013 

“Managing the State Budget Crisis at the Local Level” – League of Wisconsin Municipalities Annual Conference, Oc-
tober 2011 

“Doing More With Less:  Collaborative Leadership for Service Delivery Workshop” – Local Government Institute of 
Wisconsin, April 2011 

“Storm Water Utilities – Lessons Learned” - Waukesha County Storm Water Management Workshop, March 2011 

“Tax Incremental Finance Basics” – Wisconsin Government Finance Officers Association, December 2010 

“Racine Revenue Sharing Program” – Wisconsin Legislative Council, Special Committee on Local Service Consolida-
tion, November 2010 

“Managing Impact Fees” – Wisconsin Municipal Clerks and Treasurers Institute, UW-Green Bay Local Government 
Education, July 2010 

“A New Model for Fiscal Regionalism:  Greater Racine’s Plan for Overcoming Fiscal Disparity”, Government Finance 

Review, February 2004 



 18 

Erik A. Granum 
Principal / Senior Consultant 

Erik has been working in the field of municipal and utility consulting 
since 2007, performing a wide variety of financial, economic and 
planning-related consulting services. His philosophy to municipal 
consulting is to provide an objective, fair and independent perspec-
tive for the client, while recognizing the political difficulties in public 
policy decision-making. He excels in developing alternative scenarios 
that meet the objectives of the municipality, while being reasonable 
and defensible for government decision makers that are held ac-
countable to the residents and businesses in their communities. 
 
Erik believes in providing local government officials and decision-
makers recommendations that are based on the best available infor-
mation so that public policy is sound, fair and logical. His passions lie 
in using available data and interpreting it into something that is 
understandable and has a positive real impact on communities. He is 
a registered Municipal Advisor with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and has 
passed the Series 50 Municipal Advisor Representative Qualification 
Exam. 

169 E. Wisconsin Ave., Suite R 
Oconomowoc, WI 53066 
Phone: 920-723-2169 
Fax: 262-436-2102 
Email: egranum@trilogy-llc.com 

Education: 

• Master’s of Urban Planning, 

University of Wisconsin—

Milwaukee, 2009 

• Bachelor of Business 

Administration, Marketing & 

Operations Management, 

University of Wisconsin—

Whitewater, 2004 

 

Professional Affiliations: 

• American Planning Association, 

Wisconsin Chapter 

 

Professional Qualifications: 

• MSRB Series 50 Municipal Advisor 

Representative Exam 

• Water and Sewer Rate Studies 

• Cost-of-Service Rate Studies 

• Specialized Rate Design, including 
Conservation Water Rates  

• Capital Cost Allocation 

• Storm Water Utility Rate Studies 
and Development 

• Public  Facilities Needs 
Assessments and Impact Fee 
Studies 

• Utility Creation and Acquisition 
Feasibility Studies 

• Land Use Planning Services 

• Long-Term Capital Planning and 
Financial Analysis 

• Geographic Information Systems 
(GIS) - Mapping & Spatial Analysis 

• Tax Incremental Financing 
Planning and Analysis 

• Expert Witness Testimony and 
Litigation Support 

• Specialized Economic and 
Statistical Analysis 

• Public Policy Research and 
Analysis 

• Ordinance Review and Updating 

• Fiscal Impact Analysis 

• Life Cycle Cost Analysis 

• Analysis of New Funding Methods 

• Grant Funding Research and 
Preparation of Applications 

Experience & Expertise 



 19 

Erik A. Granum 

With Trilogy Consulting, Erik has prepared, implemented, and updated the following public facilities 

needs assessments and impact fees: 

• Police Impact Fee, Oconomowoc, WI, 2019 

• Transportation Impact Fee, Oconomowoc, WI, 2019 

• Park Impact Fee, Sussex, WI, 2015 

• Library Impact Fee, Sussex, WI, 2015 

• Water Impact Fee, River Falls, WI, 2014 

• Sewer Impact Fee, Menomonee Falls, WI, 2014 

• Park Impact Fee, Menomonee Falls, WI, 2014 

• Fire Impact Fee, Menomonee Falls, WI, 2014 

• Water Impact Fee, Menomonee Falls, WI, 2014 

• Impact Fee Update for Law Enforcement, Library, Fire Station, Sewer and Water Impact Fees, Mukwonago, WI, 

2013 

 

While employed by Ruekert/Mielke, between 2007 and 2011, Erik prepared, implemented, and updated 

public facilities needs assessments and impact fees for the following municipalities: 

• Town of Cedarburg 

• Village of Dousman 

• City of Fitchburg 

• Village of Hartland 

• Village of Menomonee Falls 

• City of Middleton 

• Village of Mukwonago 

• City of Oconomowoc 

• City of Racine 

• City of Waukesha 

Recent Projects 



 20 

Project Budget 

Task Hours

Hourly 

Rate Total Cost

Task 1:  Inventory and Identification of Existing Deficiencies

Kickoff meeting (in person) 4.00

Information gathering and review 14.00

Population and development forecasts 11.50

Parks 8.00

Police / Fire 10.00

Water  / Sewer facilities 9.00

Task Subtotal 56.50 $110 $6,215

Task 2:  Needs Assessment and Identification of Costs Attributable to Future Development

Parks

Update estimated capital costs for proposed parks 2.00

Determine percentage of capacity attributable to serving future development 3.00

Determine proportionate share of cost attributable to serving future development 3.00

Police / Fire

Determine prop. share of capacity attributable to serving future development 3.00

Compile the capital cost estimate for the proposed future police/fire station facility 4.00

Determine the share of capital costs attributable to serving future development 4.00

Water / Sewer facilities

Evaluate the recommended new facilities to identify costs to serve future development 5.00

Review recommended water main extensions 4.00

Determine the share of capital costs attributable to serving future development 1.50

Task Subtotal 29.50 $110 $3,245

Task 3:  Develop Recommended Impact Fees

Determine total amount to recover through impact fees on future development 11.50

Allocate the amounts to categories of development 5.50

Develop a recommended schedule of impact fees for each facility 5.00

Evaluate impacts on housing affordability 3.00

Task Subtotal 25.00 $110 $2,750

Task 4:  Report Preparation

Prepare draft report 11.00

Attend one review meeting with City staff (in person) 2.00

Revise and prepare final report 4.00

Task Subtotal 17.00 $110 $1,870

Task 5:  Implementation Assistance

Prepare presentation and prep for Board of Public Works 7.00

Attend one meeting of the Board of Public Works 2.00

Draft ordinance amendment 4.00

Attend the Public Hearing / Village Board meeting 3.00

Task Subtotal 16.00 $110 $1,760

Grand Total 144.00 $110 $15,840

Additional services, if requested, will be provided at the hourly rates listed above. We do not charge for reimbursable expenses.



 21 

Project Timeline 

Task

Target 

Completion Date

Task 1:  Inventory and Identification of Existing Deficiencies

Kickoff meeting (in person) 7/12/2019

Information gathering and review 7/26/2019

Population and development forecasts 8/2/2019

Identification of Existing Deficiencies 8/9/2019

Task 2:  Needs Assessment and Identification of Costs Attributable to Future 

Development 9/6/2019

Task 3:  Develop Recommended Impact Fees 9/27/2019

Task 4:  Report Preparation

Prepare draft report 10/11/2019

Attend one review meeting with City staff (in person) 10/17/2019

Revise and prepare final report 10/22/2019

Task 5:  Implementation Assistance

Prepare presentation and prep for Board of Public Works 10/22/2019

Attend one meeting of the Board of Public Works 10/29/2019

Draft ordinance 11/12/2019

Attend the Public Hearing / Village Board meeting 12/10/2019







































 
 1 

Public Works Report 
July 30, 2019 
 
Treatment Plant - Designed Capacity – 1.67 million gallons per day 

Peak Flow Capacity – 6.0 million gallons per day 
Year 2017 
January  Avg. Flow 1.230 MGD     Min. Flow 979,000 g.p.d. Max. 1.606 MGD 
February Avg. Flow 1.204 MGD  Min. Flow 926,000 g.p.d. Max. 2.141 MGD 
March  Avg. Flow 1.559 MGD  Min. Flow 1.09 MGD  Max. 2.398 MGD 
April  Avg. Flow 1.552 MGD  Min. Flow 1.049 MGD  Max. 2.446 MGD 
May  Avg. Flow 1.392 MGD  Min. Flow 666,000 g.p.d. Max. 2.588 MGD 
June  Avg. Flow 1.283 MGD  Min. Flow 763,000 g.p.d. Max. 2.429 MGD  
July  Avg. Flow 1.225 MGD  Min. Flow 879,000 g.p.d. Max. 1.711 MGD 
August  Avg. Flow 1.049 MGD  Min. Flow 750,000 g.p.d. Max. 1.414 MGD 
September Avg. Flow 870,300 g.p.d. Min Flow 714,000 g.p.d. Max.  1.132 MGD 
October  Avg. Flow 953,871 g.p.d. Min. Flow 563,000 g.p.d. Max. 1.257 MGD 
November Avg. Flow 886,967 g.p.d. Min. Flow 729,000 g.p.d. Max. 1,154 MGD 
December Avg. Flow 835,484 g.p.d. Min. Flow 651,000 g.p.d. Max. 1.074 MGD 
 
Year 2018 
January  Avg. Flow 893,258 g.p.d.     Min. Flow 693,000 g.p.d. Max. 1.541 MGD 
February Avg. Flow 1.072 MGD  Min. Flow 651,000 g.p.d. Max. 2.476 MGD 
March  Avg. Flow 1.011 MGD  Min. Flow 702,000 g.p.d. Max. 1.365 MGD   
April  Avg. Flow    
May  Avg. Flow 1.577 MGD  Min. Flow 982,000 g.p.d. Max. 2.807 MGD 
June  Avg. Flow 1.053 MGD  Min. Flow 703,000 g.p.d. Max. 1.422 MGD 
July  Avg. Flow 942,871 g.p.d. Min. Flow 699,000 g.p.d. Max. 1.228 MGD 
August  Avg. Flow 1.342 MGD  Min. Flow 700,000 g.p.d. Max. 3.93 MGD 
September Avg. Flow 1.608 MGD  Min. Flow 1.07 MGD  Max. 3.47 MGD 
October  Avg. Flow 1.540 MGD  Min. Flow 960,000 g.p.d. Max. 2.67 MGD 
November Avg. Flow 1.268 MGD  Min. Flow 940,000 g.p.d. Max. 2.12 MGD 
December Avg. Flow 1.218 MGD  Min. Flow 880,000 g.p.d. Max. 1.82 MGD 
 
Year 2019 
January  Avg. Flow 1.270 MGD     Min. Flow 900,000 g.p.d. Max. 2.660 MGD 
February Avg. Flow 1.229 MGD  Min. Flow 850,000 g.p.d. Max. 1.980 MGD 
March  Avg. Flow 1.379 MGD  Min. Flow 910,000 g.p.d. Max. 2.790 MGD 
April  Avg. Flow 1.483 MGD  Min. Flow 1.020 MGD  Max. 2.660 MGD 
May  Avg. Flow 1.542 MGD  Min. Flow 1.320 MGD  Max 1.960 MGD 
June  Avg. Flow 2.144 MGD  Min. Flow 1.300 MGD  Max. 2.700 MGD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 2 

Years Summary of Water Consumption 
2006 Total Pumpage 207,719,000 gallons 2007 Total Pumpage 217,224,000 gallons 
2008 Total Pumpage 229,613,000 gallons 2009 Total Pumpage 231,160,000 gallons 
2010 Total Pumpage 239,326,000 gallons 2011 Total Pumpage 240,268,000 gallons 
2012 Total Pumpage 253,492,000 gallons 2013 Total Pumpage 228,371,000 gallons 
2014 Total Pumpage 230,973,000 gallons 2015 Total Pumpage 222,621,000 gallons 
2016 Total Pumpage 254,531,000 gallons 2017 Total Pumpage 251,387,000 gallons 
 
Year 2017 
Jan.  Avg. 630,710 g.p.d.  Highest Day 771,000 gals. Total 19,552,000 gallons 
Feb. Avg. 640,790 g.p.d.  Highest Day 885,000 gals Total 17,942,000 gallons 
March Avg. 611,520 g.p.d.  Highest Day 691,000 gals Total 18,957,000 gallons 
April Avg. 703,070 g.p.d.  Highest Day 1.173 MGD Total 21,092,000 gallons 
May Avg. 683,420 g.p.d.  Highest Day 988,000 gals Total 21,186,000 gallons 
June Avg. 762,230 g.p.d.  Highest Day 1.044 MGD Total 22,867,000 gallons 
July Avg. 730,580 g.p.d.  Highest Day 953,000 gals Total 22,648,000 gallons 
August  Avg. 745,900 g.p.d.  Highest Day 903,000 gals Total 23,123,000 gallons 
Sept      Avg. 738,170 g.p.d.  Highest Day 996,000 gals Total 22,145,000 gallons 
Oct       Avg. 716,100 g.p.d.  Highest Day 1.055 MGD Total 22,199,000 gallons  
Nov     Avg. 646,500 g.p.d.  Highest Day 783,000 gals Total 19,395,000 gallons 
Dec Avg. 654,230 g.p.d.  Highest Day 754,000 gals. Total 20,281,000 gallons 
 
Year 2018 
Jan.  Avg. 674,710 g.p.d.  Highest Day 831,000 gals. Total 20,916,000 gallons 
Feb. Avg. 660,820 g.p.d.  Highest Day 762,000 gals. Total 18,503,000 gallons 
March Avg. 646,810 g.p.d.  Highest Day 784,000 gals. Total 20,051,000 gallons 
April Avg. 656,300 g.p.d.  Highest Day 1.122 MGD Total 19,689,000 gallons 
May Avg. 682,065 g.p.d.  Highest Day 840,000 gals. Total 21,144,000 gallons 
June Avg. 694,600 g.p.d.  Highest Day 891,000 gals. Total 20,838,000 gallons 
July Avg. 759,160 g.p.d.  Highest Day 1.172 MGD Total 23,534,000 gallons 
August Avg. 728,450 g.p.d.  Highest Day 963,000 gals. Total 22,582,000 gallons 
Sept Avg. 605,200 g.p.d.  Highest Day 842,000 gals. Total 18,156,000 gallons 
Oct Avg. 619,320 g.p.d.  Highest Day 896,000 gals. Total 19,199,000 gallons 
 
Year 2019 
Jan.  Avg. 638,230 g.p.d.  Highest Day 791,000 gals. Total 19,785,000 gallons 
Feb. Avg. 605,820 g.p.d.  Highest Day 758,000 gals. Total 16,9630,00 gallons 
March Avg. 616,230 g.p.d.  Highest Day 946,000 gals. Total 19,103,000 gallons 
April  Avg. 697,800 g.p.d.  Highest Day 1.112 MGD Total 20,934,000 gallons 
May Avg. 707,810 g.p.d.  Highest Day 889,000 gals. Total 21,942,000 gallons 
June Avg. 766,200 g.p.d.  Highest Day 969,000 gals. Total 22,986,000 gallons 
Pump Capacity - Well #1- 400 g.p.m. Well #3 -900 g.p.m. Well #4 - 1200 g.p.m. Well #5 – 1,100 g.p.m.  Well #6 – 800 
g.p.m.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 3 

WWTP – Holding & Septage Receiving 
 

2005 $  87,562.01 2006 $101,115.11 2007 $152,201.07 2008 $210,441.47 
2009     $183,815.34 2010 $197,653.66 2011 $220,576.28 2012 $236,224.70 
2013     $235,336.46 2014 $203,938.32 2015 $210,644.47 2016 $220,473.17 
2017     $232,358.23 2018 $245,767.74       

 
2017  Holdings Grease       G Decant       Septage        S Decant Total Billings 
      (gals)     (gals)             (gals)             (gals)         (gals)  
Jan  1,287,450                          10,500    57,100           $11,503.39 
Feb  1,358,400           28,500             1,750    78,550 $13,361.76 
March  1,678,850           22,000           28,100  174,900 $18,967.89 
April  1,581,350              35,600  320,900 $21,306.63 
May  1,745,550              51,150  394,600 $25,002.63 
June  1,664,600              38,700  321,950 $22,081.26 
July  1,599,070              33,100  230,150 $19,070.78 
August  1,669,850              35,100  273,850 $20,774.14 
September 1,430,000              37,350  248,125 $18,422.13 
October  1,710,550              64,200 454,850 $26,768.38 
November 1,541,700              50,150 353,050 $22,395.00 
December 1,174,400              13,700 127,250 $12,539.26  
 
2018  Holdings Grease       G Decant       Septage        S Decant Total Billings 
      (gals)     (gals)             (gals)             (gals)         (gals)  
Jan  1,627,400                          2,250    70,400           $14,055.51 
Feb  1,632,750              1,750    69,850 $14,061.88 
March  1,589,150              6,450  197,600 $17,943.45 
April  1,451,750            16,750  234,400 $18,227.75 
May  1,849,700            21,050 354,100 $24,597.35 
June  1,636,850            38,900 351,450 $23,631.55  
July  1,662,650            37,150 230,750 $20,741.70 
August  1,861,850            58,650 315,400 $25,419.05 
September 1,510,000            37,000 249,500 $19,982.50 
October  1,676,000            38,000 462,900 $26,690.50 
November 1,433,250            29,500 397,100 $22,721.00 
December 1,481,500            13,550 209,350 $17,695.50  
 
2019  Holdings Grease       G Decant       Septage        S Decant Total Billings 
      (gals)     (gals)             (gals)             (gals)         (gals)  
Jan  1,230,000                          2,000    77,700           $11,872.50 
Feb  1,432,250              1,000    70,100 $13,255.50 
March  1,614,450            11,750  161,800 $17,489.35 
April  1,485,950            48,700  335,350 $22,462.85 
May  1,589,200            27,600  349,400 $22,690.60 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 4 

Rosewood Drive/TIF Expansion Project 
The Rosewood Lane Project has landscaping being the last items to complete for the south side of the road.  The 
northside of Rosewood Lane has a concept plan approved for a 72-unit apartment development.  The Village is 
working with We-Energies on the electric system to be placed underground.  Once, the location of electric 
transforms are determined a streetlight layout will be design, and bid out for installation.  No change. 
 
Cedar Creek Farmers Group 
The Jackson Sewer Utility has been partnering with the Cedar Creek Farmers Group to achieve better water quality 
in the Cedar Creek Watershed.  Plans are being made to have an urban/rural outreach field Day on September 7, 
2019.  Healthy soils, cover crops, no-till, nutrient management, water test kits, and yard waste bags to Village 
residents will be some the events.  The safety building property has been planted with cover crop for the event. 
 
CTH P and STH 60 Intersection Project and old Park-n-Lot Property 
 Discussion continues with Washington County and WisDOT on ownership. A meeting is being scheduled on 
future development of the intersection. 
 
Ridgeway Drive Reconstruction Project 
Landscaping retainage to complete the project.  The landscaper is back to attempt a re-seeding the area defined by 
the punch list.  The concrete company is doing sidewalk and curbing repairs. Hope we can start considering 
recommending closing the project.  
 
Maplewood Farms 
Maplewood Farms Subdivision Phase 1 has received all the permits from the DNR to start the utility 
installation. 
  
Cobblestone Meadows Development 
The Village has approved the final plat for the development.  Erosion control will need to be revisited.  Grading 
has been completed for the start of home construction. 
 
Laurel Springs Addition No. 1 
Laurel Springs Subdivision construction continues with a plan adjustment for the boring under the 
railroad tracks to avoid an existing electric pole. 
 
Yard Waste Drop-off Site 
A pre-construction meeting is being schedule in order to start the project. 
 
Hickory Park New Playground Project 
Landscaping and getting the grass to grow is the remaining item.  The construction of the sand play area will start 
soon. 
 
Safety Building/Village Hall Project 
TIF District is being created along with utility and building plans being completed. Meet with the DNR on the 
flood plain and wetland impact.  WE are proceed as per requirements with no major concerns.  
 
Respectfully submitted, Brian W. Kober, P.E. 


	07302019 Public Works Agenda
	x2 06272019 Board of Public Works Minutes - Draft
	x3 Review of Proposal-City Water & Trilogy Consulting
	x4 Review of Bids 2019 Improvements Sherman & Jackson
	x5 Review of Bids 2019 Chateau & Hickory
	x6 Resolution #19-20 Preliminary Assessment Chateau & Hickory
	x7 US Cellular Antenna
	Email US Cellular White Tower Equipment 7 24 2019
	Page C8 and page 2 of agreement

	x8 Public Works Report July 30 2019
	2008 Total Pumpage 229,613,000 gallons 2009 Total Pumpage 231,160,000 gallons
	2008 Total Pumpage 229,613,000 gallons 2009 Total Pumpage 231,160,000 gallons


